
CITY OF ST. ANTHONY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

OCTOBER 27, 2011, 7:00 p.m.
420 NORTH BRIDGE, SUITE A, ST ANTHONY, 10, CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

PRESENT: Mayor Neils Thueson, Council Members Rod Willmore, Woody Andersen, Elva
Powell, Suzanne Bagley, Bryan Stoddard and Bryant Biorn.

ALSO PRESENT: Water Superintendent Kirk Nelson, City Attorney Bill Forsberg, Police
Chief Jim Smith, City Clerk-Treasurer Patty Parkinson and approximately 11 citizens.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Thueson at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Councilmember Bagley.

PUBLIC HEARING

Resolution to set fees for Business Licensing - Mayor Thueson opened the floor for the
public to comment. Ralph Madsen, 125 E 31G N, wanted to know where the money collected
will be going. Councilmember Bagley said the reason for the fees is to cover the costs for
the program generating the license, the certificates and the annual billings. The annual
renewal fee of $10 doesn't even cover the costs associated with paying for the help. The
first $25 will get the city started and then a data base will be established. Bagley said the
fees proposed are one of the very lowest around the state. Attorney Forsberg said the city
council has decided there is a need to identify and in some respects, regulate business
activities in the community. Some businesses reqUire more regulation than others. This
ordinance covers everything from the brick and mortar businesses in town, which are the
steady tax paying businesses, to those passing through town selling their goods and services
by soliciting. There have been some negative and concerting things that have occurred with
businesses using solicitation and rather than pick out one particular business and focus on it
the council has come up with this solution to regulate all businesses. So a compromise was
made to establish the appropriate amount of regulation to protect the health and welfare and
the security of the city's citizens and to foster the good businesses and to make sure those
that were not really in business but committing wrongful or criminal acts could be identified
and dealt with. It is not a revenue raising measure. The Finance Committee looked at this
long and hard and in cooperation with the city clerk the city will only be barely breaking even
based upon the level of fees proposed. It will not raise any significant revenue, if any, and at
the same time will allow the city to do an important thing. MaryEllen Moberly, of Fastback
Bail Bonds, 48 N Bridge, asked if there is a grandfathering clause for any business that has
been here in the city for four or five years and has to pass other licensing requirements from
the state. Forsberg said no there isn't any grandfather clause. Moberly wanted to know
about background checks. Forsberg said Moberly would pay the license fee and no
background check would be done on her. Forsberg said the background checks are for
itinerate peddlers and prior to this ordinance the city had no authority to have any kind of
regulation of any business in this town. Thueson said what this ordinance might do is solve
some problems before the problems become serious. The other thing is nearly every city all
around us have business licensing requirements and due to that, the peddler comes to our
city, since there is no regulation and we receive more than our share. Thueson said he gets

1



phone calls regarding the peddler wanting to know if he knows about them and why they are
there and why they are so forceful. Moberly said there is an ordinance against soliciting.
Forsberg said the soliciting ordinance is not constitutional. Forsberg said the ordinance has
already passed and the public comment is on the fees only. Bagley reviewed the annual
fees associated with each type of business, being an initial fee of $25 for a commercial
business and a home occupation with a permanent physical presence inside the city limits
with a $10 renewal fee; commercial special events and out of town, seasonal or temporary
business, $50; and a transient solicitor, $250 with a possible additional $250 for a
background check. Madsen said he is against any fees and believed Harry Haulker could
provide the city with a piece of paper for $1. Madsen said there didn't need to be a computer
because there are not a lot of businesses in town and everyone knows everyone and the tax
roll knows where everybody is. Madsen said he is getting a little bit tired of this, haVing to
have permission to do and permission for this. Madsen continued by saying there was a
country called Germany once that tried this and it failed. He said he gets his backed bowed
by paying for something he doesn't get anything from. He said he's been a business for 30
years and everyone knows he's a business and he doesn't need a paper that says he is. It's
just a way to pay more money. Dorothy Catrell said she is interested in the home based
businesses. She said it gives her home based business legitimacy. Catrell said she really
likes the idea and believes it is fair and is a relief and she is all for it. Catrell said the $25 is a
low fee and very fair. Public comment continued discussing some examples for those people
selling Avon or being invited into someone's home for "a show" of their products. Gary Cox,
246 W gth S, had some additional comments and concerns, answered by Forsberg. Cox said
a $50 fee was too high for many multi level marketing businesses. He said it impedes free
business between towns. Tom Van Witbeck, a landlord owning property in St. Anthony, said
this may be difficult to enforce with many home based businesses. He said he owns rentals
in town and in Pocatello there is licensing for himself of $300 per year and other contractors
working on his property have to pay $100 per year and that doesn't include the fees they
need to pay to be licensed in their craft. He said the amount St. Anthony wants to collect is
relatively innocuous. Thueson said he is trying to make it as low as possible. Having
information from businesses will help the city answer questions regarding zoning and public
works and safety issues. Thueson again reviewed the list going over all the proposed
pricing. There being no further public comment, Thueson closed the public hearing.

GENERAL BUSINESS

Discuss/Adopt Resolution to set fees for Business Licensing - Mayor Thueson asked
for comment from council. Councilmember Biorn said he has spoken to four businesses
owners in the city since passing the business license ordinance. One was on the fence
regarding the ordinance, but didn't think the fees proposed were unreasonable. The other
three he spoke to got him curious about the overall attitude of the businesses in this
community. One needed a license in order to obtain a loan to expand his business and since
there wasn't a business license, it took an additional gO days for his business to obtain the
loan. He would have benefited had he had a piece of paper saying he was a legitimate
business. The other two said they thought it was a great thing. In regards to the fees no one
has told him they were too high. He understands the concerns and how people feel this is
just another fee. Councilmember Willmore said he is apposed to fees for businesses. He
said he knows the fees are minimal, but the principle of it is what concerns him. He
continued by saying this ordinance was passed for the residents for their protection, so why

2



doesn't the entire city pay for the software and give the businesses a break. Every time we
buy a loader, the entire city pays for it. Willmore said the out of town, seasonal and
temporary business fee is too high for them. He thought a life time one time fee would be
best. Councilmember Stoddard said this is for the protection of the citizens and to charge
the transient business. Stoddard said it'll be hard to enforce, especially for home based
businesses. He said his concerns are only with outside businesses that take business away
from our city businesses and pose a threat to our community. Stoddard agreed with
Willmore saying he thought all citizens should be paying for this, since it's for their protection.
Councilmember Andersen thought the city could pay for the software and he didn't agree

with a life time business license. He said it should be annually reviewed to see if the
business has changed in any way. Andersen said one reason for passing this ordinance was
to protect the businesses in town. Our local businesses pay taxes and transient businesses
need to make up the difference. Councilmember Powell said she agrees with Willmore.
Councilmember Bagley said everyone has a lot of good points and she is happy the
ordinance has passed. Bagley said she just wants people to be safe. Bagley doesn't want to
take on the fee either, but doesn't see the fees as being unreasonable. Attitudes are very
strong and we need to listen to the people and what they have to say, including those that
are thanking us for this ordinance. Thueson said he didn't see anything wrong with the fees
just the way they are set. He said if you can't afford $10 per year then you need to get out of
business. The city is trying to monitor and take care of the solicitors, but you can't stop
solicitors from coming to town. Everyone has to be involved to control solicitors. This is one
way to get them to pay their fair share, like the brick and mortar businesses do. Thueson
said some kind of decision needs to be made. A motion to accept the Business License
Fees Resolution as proposed with the initial fee of $25 for a business and/or home
occupation and renewal of $10; a special events, out of town, seasonal or temporary
business fee of $50 and a transient solicitor's fee of $250 per year was made by Andersen.
Thueson asked for a second. The motion died for lack of a second. A motion to table this
resolution until a later time was made by Bagley and seconded by Andersen. A roll call vote
was called for with councilmembers Andersen and Bagley in favor and Powell, Biorn,
Stoddard and Willmore opposed. Motion failed 2-4. A motion to accept the Business
License Fees Resolution with the initial fee of $1 0 for a business and/or home occupation
and renewal of $10; a special events, out of town, seasonal or temporary business fee of $50
and a transient solicitors fee of $250 with a processing fee not to exceed $250 for a transient
sales person per year was made by Willmore. Before the motion was complete, Biorn asked
to change it to include businesses in Fremont County. After some discussion, Biorn
abandoned the modification for Fremont County. Willmore then restated his motion. It was
seconded by Biorn. All council members were in favor. Motion passed 6-0.

Discuss Utility Account at Property 239 N BridgeNan Witbeck - Tom Van Witbeck
introduced himself and his wife, Mavis. He is the owner and landlord of a property located at
239 N Bridge. He provided council with a letter, which council and Attorney Forsberg read.
Van Witbeck said he has owned this property, formerly known as the Reynolds Motel, since
1980 and he said there has been various numbers of units through out the years. Since
purchasing it, he converted it into a couple of four-plexes. Van Witbeck thanked council for
their time and said he discovered recently after receiving a flyer in the mail with the utility
statement regarding how the bill is calculated. Van Witbeck said he spoke to the city clerk
about the EDUs (Equivalent Dwelling Units). He said he was being charged for 12 EDUs and
that has been going on since the city has been charging for EDUs. He said he thought they

3



were in the system for 8 units. Back in 1996, in April, he had questions about his billing then
and discovered the city had overcharged him for $208.75. He said they had already
remodeled the place twice, converting the front building, or building number one, from an
owner's quarters and six overnight units to four one bedroom units and took the eight
efficiency units and converted those into four two bedroom units. So there have been eight
units there since 1993. He said he questioned the billing and talked to the city then and was
being overcharged then and was given a refund. He said it was pointed out to him that it is
the owner's responsibility, but when there is a change in the system, it is the city's
responsibility to notify the people that there has been a change in the system. He said he
didn't get any notification, even for the basis of the new system, how the EDUs were being
calculated. He said there is no obvious way to determine what the EDUs are for any
business by looking at the utility billings. Van Witbeck would like to have a credit of
$8,953.00 on his account for the extra four EDUs, as they have done in the past. He said the
city should be including the EDU's on the billings. And there should be a statement of what
the rates are, like the letter he got with his last billing. Attorney Forsberg said he had asked
Van Witbeck earlier for documentation and had not received any. Forsberg said the
newsletter has been sent out for the last three years showing the utility rates and fees with
every utility bill. Forsberg said he needs to do some research and to review public notices
sent and look at past meeting minutes. Forsberg said the council needs to consider his
request and asked to table this request to sometime in December to do the investigations.
Van Witbeck said this would be fine. Councilmember Biorn asked about how EDUs are
calculated. Forsberg said they are determined by living unit. Van Witbeck said he would like
the credit and he would allow the city to go over it.

Mayor Thueson called a recess so the clerk coould make copies.

After a short recess, Mayor Thueson called the meeting back to order.

Report on Greenway Trail to Statue/Deon Davenport - Deon Davenport was not present.

Update on West Main (Paul Scoresby/Schiess & Associates) - Paul Scoresby and Ryan
Peterson of Schiess & Associates came to give a status report on the West Main Street
project. Scoresby started by thanking the city for allowing them to work the Wastewater
Phase III Project. Scoresby said this was a very successful project and their last bill will be
forthcoming. Scoresby said there is a lot of field work to be done on West Main, but it can't
start until the contract is signed. There really isn't anything that can be done until lTD (Idaho
Transportation Department) gives them the go ahead. Once the go ahead is given they can
begin to survey, drill, and do the traffic counts. They will get real busy in a hurry to try and
beat the first snowfall.

LHRIP Applications (Paul Scoresby/Schiess & Associates) - Paul Scoresby of Schiess &
Associates said they are working with Clerk Parkinson in preparing the 2012 LHRIP (Local
Highway Rural Improvement Project) application. Scoresby believes based on last year's
application the city should rank quite well. Last year the city was one point away from the
last awarded grant. This application will be going in for 12t1i Street, same as last year. There
is a rumor that lTD will not request applications next year and go to a two year application
process, so this application is very important to get in. Scoresby said the application is as
good as it gets. Mayor Thueson said an ECHO meeting has been scheduled. (ECHO is a

4



multi jurisdictional road committee.)

Accessible Parking on First North requirement to change curbing (Forsberg) - Attorney
Forsberg said there is a request for accessible parking in front of the business, Excellence in
Everyone, north of the post office and east of the court house grounds. Clerk Parkinson
checked and found there is, in fact, ADA accessible curbing at the corner. Forsberg said
additionally this is diagonal parking on a very busy street. This will take a fair amount of
space to do and people having to go to the corner for the accessible curbing will have to go
where it is very busy. Forsberg said even if the ramps are there and they are not exactly
right according to ADA standards, then the city will have to re-do the corner. Forsberg asked
Paul Scoresby of Schiess & Associates if he knows if this curbing continues to meet the very
stringent and technical requirements set by ADA. Before the city considers placing an
accessible parking space they need to reconsider putting it on that street, in that location,
and if it meets the ADA requirements. Scoresby said it is probably non-compliant to the
current standards, because since the time that law has been instituted in 1993 it has already
changed. Overall education on how to do those ramps has risen. East Main is a good
example of how to build an ADA accessible sidewalk ramp. Thueson said there are other
businesses there and very heavy traffic and creating an accessible parking area takes up
more than one parking space, limiting all the parking. That particular business has
accessible parking in the back of their business and appears to be working just fine and is
probably much safer than what the city could provide for them on the street. Scoresby said
the T2 Center, at lTD, has a pamphlet that can be purchased for $2 and shows what is
required for ADA accessibility. These are all on line at the lTD website. A motion to rescind
the motion made at the last meeting to provide an accessible parking spot on First North was
made by Councilmember Biorn and seconded by Councilmember Bagley. All council
members approved. Motion passed 6-0.

Review and Discuss Proposed Vehicle Use Policy (Parkinson) - Clerk Parkinson
provided council with a proposed Vehicle Use Policy. This policy, once passed, will be
provided to ICRMP, the city's insurer, as part of the Risk Management Program Parkinson is
working on to obtain a five percent discount on the city's insurance rates. After a short
review with a question and answer period from council and staff a motion to adopt the
Proposed Vehicle Use Policy as presented was made by Councilmember Biorn and
seconded by Councilmember Powell. All council members present were in favor. Motion
passed 6-0. Mayor Thueson asked Clerk Parkinson to implement the policy with staff.

Support Letter for Fremont County Parks and Recreation Department - Mayor Thueson
has a request from the Fremont County Parks and Recreation Department asking the city for
their support of four different projects they are attempting to do. Thueson reviewed those
projects briefly. All council members voiced their support for these projects and requested
Thueson to write a letter.

INVOICES & CLAIMS - Payment Approval Reports were presented to Council. Clerk
Parkinson asked about paying the $2000 for cloud seeding support to High Country RC&D
and was reminded it was included in this year's budget. A motion to pay the invoices and
claims was made by Councilmember Powell and seconded by Councilmember Andersen. All
council members present were in favor. Motion passed 6-0.

5



MINUTES - Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 13, 2011 were presented to
Council. A motion to accept the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 13, 2011 was
made by Councilmember Bagley and seconded by Councilmember Powell. All council
members present were in favor. Motion passed 6-0.

DEPARTMENT, COUNCIL & MAYOR REPORTS

Water Superintendent Nelson reported the speed limit signs are ordered. Nelson also said
he has spoken to Zundel's Tree Service about talking down Orem's tree. Nelson also
reminded Public Works Superintendent Scott Butigan about the parking lines next to Targhee
Lanes.

Police Chief Smith reported the Skate Park camera has an operating DVR system borrowed
from the Homeland Security System and everything is now properly working. There is a
proposed quote for a city wide wireless camera system which included four camera
connections of $2,975. This will bring our system up to standards and working. Some of
these funds can be reimbursed through a requested grant from Homeland Security if the city
replaces with new equipment. Smith talked to Keith Richey about obtaining Homeland
Security funds and learned the application process won't open up for ten months. Smith said
the question is whether to wait or go ahead with the bid as proposed. Smith said he thinks
the city should include a new DVR. Councilmember Stoddard said a Homeland Security
grant was awarded to the city for the original cameras and asked what the city's obligations
are for the current system. Smith said the city is supposed to maintain the system, but if the
city needs to upgrade to more state of the art that is fine. Smith said it is not a requirement
to keep it up, if we can't. Smith said he hasn't seen an obligation to maintain.
Councilmember Bagley suggested Smith to contact Cameron Stanford, of Homeland
Security in Madison County, to see if there is anything they can do to help us with. Bagley
thought Stanford can confirm what the city's obligations are for upkeep and maintenance for
the current system. Thueson said he spoke to Keith Richey, who is our Homeland Security
specialist in Fremont County. Thueson said our city would qualify for Homeland Security
funds and thinks the city should continue to work with Richey. Smith said the bid is from
Computer Impressions out of Blackfoot, they work for Computer Arts. Smith also reported
the E-ticketing program is working. All of the city's police cars have E-ticketing in them.
$3,010 will be reimbursed to the city from grant funds.

City Attorney Forsberg had nothing to report.

Clerk Parkinson reported letters went out today to residents regarding the low overhanging
of trees. The overhanging trees are causing damage to the school district's busses. Rocky
Mountain Power accepted the city's franchise ordinance. Parkinson also reminded council of
the 2011 AIC Academy for Newly Elected and Veteran City Officials. This is a free academy
and Parkinson recommended all council members to attend.

Councilmember Bagley reported tonight was a good move forward in the business licensing
and we can now put it to rest. Bagley said it's not going to be perfect and there may be
things to work out. She said we listened to the people and at the same time accomplish
some safety for the people.

6



Councilmember Powell had nothing to report.

Councilmember Andersen reported on the last Lions Club meeting. They are working on
their free Thanksgiving Dinner and are open to accepting donations; money, turkeys or
hams. Contact Sam Davis, Lyndon Rinehart or Don Oram for additional information or
donations. Andersen said he attended the High country RC&D meeting today and he thinks
the city should have someone from RC&D come to council to discuss the many things they
do. He talked abut the Hold the Line program, a bug raising program and cloud seeding is
another program they have the city has participated in. The state has come on board with
$20,000 towards cloud seeding. They are also looking at food bank programs and recycling
in addition to the Clark County incinerator. Andersen also gave Mayor Thueson his
resignation letter. Tonight will be his last meeting.

Councilmember Biorn had nothing to report, but did say since Councilmember Andersen is
leaving, there should be a new council president elected.

Councilmember Stoddard reported on the goodness and charity of our citizens during the
Scouting for Food Drive. He said our citizens need to be recognized for this, especially
during these hard economic times. Stoddard recognized how valuable Councilmember
Andersen has been as a council member. Stoddard continued by saying the city is sound
economically because of his input and knowledge regarding streets and he will truly be
missed.

Councilmember Willmore reported the Intermountain Gas line is in at the airport. Five
hangar owners have already hooked into the gas. Willmore also said Sam Buckley, hangar
owner, has passed away. Willmore wanted to know if the city can send information about the
gas line with the renewals to let hangar owners know. Clerk Parkinson said she would take
care of it. Willmore said he received a call form a Sarinda Charmin who said they sent a
letter to Jerry Cain about an inspection of the pavement at the airport. Charmin contacted
Willmore and the inspection was done and a report will be coming back to the city from ITO.
Then we'll know what sort of shape the runway is in. ITO needs a history of what has been
done in the past on the runway pavement. Willmore said someone needs to check with
Butigan to see what has been done.

Mayor Thueson said there will be an Eastern Idaho Legislative Forum in Rexburg and he
plans on attending. City dignitaries will visit with legislatures and discuss what some of our
issues are. It will by hosted by the City of Rexburg. And last, but not least, regarding the
letter of resignation from Andersen, Thueson said Andersen has served the city well and the
council well. Thueson thanked him for his service and gave him a box of Florence's
chocolates for his drive south to Arizona. Thueson said Andersen will be missed and asked
he stay in touch. Andersen thanked him and said he will return in the spring.

7



There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting was adjourned at
approximately 9:25 p.m. by Mayor Thueson.

Attest:

Patty Unruh Parkinson, City Clerk-Treasurer

B


